## M I N U T E S REGULAR MEETING OF THE DESIGN REVIEW BOARD MEETING COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT CITY OF GLENDALE, CA

#### Thursday, May 27, 2021

Due to the evolving situation with the COVID-19 novel coronavirus and health recommendations from the LA County Health Department regarding social distancing, the Design Review Meeting was available to the public online and electronically. Board members and the general public participated in the meeting from the safety of their homes.

DRB Meeting called to order at 5:00 p.m.

1. ROLL CALL: Present: Minas, Simonian, Smith, Chair Welch (all via Webex) Absent: Tchaghayan

Community Development Department Staff – Vilia Zemaitaitis, Roger Kiesel, Mike Fortney, Kristine Agardi (all staff members via webex).

#### 2. REPORT REGARDING POSTING OF THE AGENDA:

The Agenda for the May 27, 2021 Regular Meeting of the Glendale Design Review Board was posted on May 24, 2021 on the Bulletin Board Outside City Hall and on May 20, 2021 on the City's website.

#### 3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Approval of Design Review Board Minutes from May 13, 2021.

Motion: Smith Second: Minas Vote: 4-0

4. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS: None.

#### 5. BOARD/COMMISSION MEMBER COMMENTS: None.

- 6. OLD BUSINESS: None.
- 7. NEW BUSINESS

#### a) 900 East Broadway DRB Case No. PDR 2107450

Speaking on the item:

Mike Fortney on behalf of Glendale Housing Authority (Applicant) John Arnold from KFA Los Angeles (Architect) Motion:Approve with Conditions (Record of Decision attached)Moved by:SimonianSeconded:Minas

Vote as follows:

Ayes:Minas, Simonian, WelchNoes:NoneRecused:NoneAbstain:Smith

8. ADJOURMENT - 6:35 PM

Christopher Welch Chairperson – Design Review Board

# DESIGN REVIEW BOARD RECORD OF DECISION

Meeting Date	May 27, 2021	DRB Case No.	PDR 2107450
		Address	900 East Broadway
		Applicant	Housing Authority

#### **Project Summary:**

The proposed project involves the demolition of the existing building, constructed in 1976, and surface parking lot and construction of a new five-story building to provide a 127-unit density bonus residential housing project with 100% affordable units (aside from the manager's unit). The project is located on a 34,500 SF site in the C3 (Commercial Service) zone.

#### **Design Review:**

Board Member	Motion	Second	Yes	No	Absent	Abstain
Minas		Х	Х			
Simonian	Х		Х			
Smith						Х
Tchaghayan					Х	
Welch			Х			
Totals			3		1	1
DRB Decision	Approve with conditions.					

#### **Conditions:**

- 1. Staff shall review and approve details regarding the interface between adjoining façade cladding materials (stucco, brick veneer, metal siding) the treatment of inside and outside corners.
- 2. Design of the main entrance located on East Broadway to the project shall be amended to better highlight this area of the building.

#### **Considerations:**

1. Consider a darker color for the brick base and corner elements to be more harmonious with the building located at 920 East Broadway.

#### **Determination of Compatibility: Site Planning**

The proposed site planning is appropriate, as modified by any proposed conditions, to the site and its surroundings for the following reasons:

- The project provides a 20 ft. street front setback, consistent with the requirement of the R-1250 zone and compatible with the adjacent historic building to the east.
- The proposed courtyard is centrally located for all residents to easily access, provides a variety of seating areas and, through design, maintains appropriate privacy levels for adjacent residential units.
- The design of the fencing to secure the courtyard is consistent with the project design.
- Trash is proposed in the southeastern portion of the site, accessible from the proposed east/west access easement, which connects to the existing north/south alley and roof mounted equipment will be effectively screened by the parapets of the buildings.

#### **Determination of Compatibility: Mass and Scale**

The proposed massing and scale are appropriate, as modified by any proposed conditions, to the site and its surroundings for the following reasons:

- The affordable housing project is located with ½ mile of a major transit stop and entitled to a 33-ft. height/3-story increase. The 60-foot, 5-story project is consistent with the allowable increase in height/stories.
- The project has a clearly defined base, middle and top, which assists in mitigating the appearance of mass.
- The step backs at the top floor units and corner roof decks help break up the building volume and diminish its sense of monumentality at the street facades.
- The variety of façade materials used and recessed balcony volumes reduce the massing of the project.

### Determination of Compatibility: Design and Detailing

The proposed design and detailing are appropriate, as modified by any proposed conditions, to the site and its surroundings for the following reasons:

- The project has a crisp, modern design and the stucco, brick and metal clad building is internally consistent and appropriately detailed.
- Windows are recessed in their openings and reinforce the style of the building.
- The variety of cladding materials used on the project adds interest to the building and, as conditioned, will butt up against each other and terminate appropriately.

#### DRB Staff Member Roger Kiesel, Senior Planner

#### Notes:

Contact the case planner for an appointment for a DRB stamp. DRB stamps will not be stamped over the counter without an appointment with the case planner.

The Design Review Board approves the design of project only. Approval of a project by the Design Review Board does not constitute an approval of compliance with the Zoning Code and/or Building Code requirements.

If an appeal is not filed within the 15-day appeal period of the Design Review Board decision, plans may be approved for Building Division plan check. Prior to Building Division plan check submittal, Design Review Board approved plans must be stamped approved by the Design Review staff.

Any changes to the approved plans may constitute returning to the Design Review Board for approval. Prior to Building Division plan check submittal, all changes in substantial conformance with approved plans by the Design Review Board must be on file with the Planning Division.